From: Michelle Zyromski
To: Cecily Condon; Alicia DeLaCruz; Tennis Wick

Cc: Holly Rickett; Jennifer Klein; Michelle Zyromski
Subject: RE: Notice of Intent to Revoke Permit UPEQ7-0112
Date: Friday, September 08, 2023 3:29:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

Ltr to PRMD 230908.pdf

EXTERNAL
Good afternoon Tennis and Cecily,

Our office represents Farrow Commercial, Inc. and Farrow Ready Mix, Inc.

Please see the enclosed correspondence regarding the use permit on the property
at 3660 Copperhill Lane, Santa Rosa. As stated in my letter, please let me know
if you need me to provide any court pleadings, court rulings, or other
documentation.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Have a nice weekend.

Michelle

From: Cecily Condon <Cecily.Condon@sonoma-county.org>

Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 9:13 AM

To: John Farrow <john@farrowcommercial.com>; Alicia DeLaCruz <Alicia.DeLaCruz@sonoma-
county.org>; Tennis Wick <Tennis.Wick@sonoma-county.org>; Glenn Smith
<gsmith@smithdollar.com>; Michelle Zyromski <michelle@zklegal.com>; Troy Saldana
<troy@farrowreadymix.com>; Sheri C <scromley@farrowcommercial.com>

Cc: Scott Orr <Scott.Orr@sonoma-county.org>; Tyra Harrington <Tyra.Harrington@sonoma-
county.org>; Jennifer Klein <Jennifer.Klein@sonoma-county.org>

Subject: RE: Notice of Intent to Revoke Permit UPE07-0112

John,

Thank you very much for confirmation of receipt. In order to expedite future communications it
would be appreciated if you could confirm the best contact information. We too look forward to
working with you toward a resolution.

Thanks again,

Cecily

Cecily Condon

Planning Manager, Project Review
www.PermitSonoma.org

County of Sonoma

2550 Ventura Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95403
Direct: 707-565-1958 | Office: 707-565-1900
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ZYROMSKI KONICEK

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
Zyromski Konicek LLP

Attorneys at Law

613 Fourth Street, Suite 203
Santa Rosa, CA 95404

(707) 542-1393 telephone
(707) 542-7697 facsimile
michelle@zklegal.com

Via E-mail and U.S. Mail

September 8, 2023

Tennis Wick, Director

Cecily Condon, Project Manager

Permit Sonoma, Code Enforcement Division
2550 Ventura Avenue

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Re: August 16,2023 Notice of Intent to Review Permit
File No.: UPE-07-0112
APN: 059-250-004

Dear Mr. Wick and Ms. Condon:

Please be advised that this office represents Farrow Commercial, Inc. and Farrow
Ready Mix, Inc. (collectively “Farrow”) regarding the above-referenced matter. We have
been provided with a copy of your August 16, 2023 correspondence and write to
respectfully request that you place this matter in abeyance until the pending litigation in
Sonoma County Superior Court between the owner and the tenants at this property has

concluded.

As you most likely know, the real property at 3660 Copperhill Lane in Santa Rosa is
owned by CMS Properties LLC (“CMS"); Mark and Stacey Ciddio are two of the members of
this LLC. Farrow occupies this property pursuantto a November 20, 2018 written
Commercial Lease Agreement signed by Stacey Ciddio and John Farrow. The Lease
Agreement contained an original three-year fixed term and an Option Agreement whereby
Farrow could occupy the premises under two four-year extensions. The Lease Agreement
also included certain addenda that referenced a Use Permit for the operation of a concrete
ready-mix batch plant at the property. During its tenancy, Farrow undertook significant
efforts to satisfy the conditions of the use permit known as UPE-07-0112. Farrow was
working diligently, including by hiring Adobe Associates, to clear the violations (which
were unbeknownst to Farrow at the time it took possession of the property in late 2018)
and to satisfy the 56 conditions of the 2007 use permit. Casey McDonald from Adobe
Associates had met onsite with Michael Carey in this endeavor, as well as worked on all of
the various aspects of what it would take to satisfy the myriad conditions of this particular
use permit. On October 15, 2021, she communicated with Farrow via e-mail that almost all
of the items were lined up and ready to submit to the County.

X:\Clients\FARROW\CORRESPONDENCE\Ltr to PRMD 230908.doc





September 8, 2023

However, three days later, on October 18, 2021, despite the provision in the Lease
Agreement and its Option Addendum for two successive four-year extensions, attorneys for
CMS notified Farrow that CMS claimed that the lease would expire on November 18, 2021.
Given all of the effort that Farrow had undertaken toward satisfying the conditions of the
use permit, and in light of the fact that if the lease terminated, Farrow would have to shut
down the ready-mix business, resulting in harm to its employees and its customers (many
of whom still needed concrete for fire rebuilds), combined with the express language in the
lease agreement, Farrow objected to this interpretation of the termination date of the Lease
Agreement and had to take action to protect itself.

On November 15, 2021, Farrow filed a Complaint against CMS in the Sonoma County
Superior Court, case number SCV-269684, captioned Farrow Commercial, Inc., a California
Corporation v. CMS Properties LLC, a California limited liability company. The Complaint
alleged causes of action against CMS for Breach of Contract, Fraud (Concealment),
Declaratory Relief, and Unfair Business Practices. On December 1, 2021, Farrow filed a
First Amended Complaint in the case, captioned Farrow Commercial, Inc., a California
Corporation v. CMS Properties LLC, a Montana limited liability company doing business in
California as CMS Airport Properties LLC, aka CMS Properties LLC, and alleging the same four
causes of action.

On December 27, 2021, Farrow filed an Application for Temporary Restraining
Order and Order to Show Cause, asserting its right to continued possession of the premises.
Judge Gary Nadler issued the Temporary Restraining Order and scheduled an Order to
Show Cause hearing for January 21, 2022. On that date, January 21, 2022, Judge Nadler
heard oral argument from counsel for Farrow and counsel for CMS, and ordered the
issuance of a Preliminary Injunction, iwhich enjoined and restrained CMS from attempting
to evict Farrow from the premises during the pendency of the court case. Judge Nadler
scheduled the trial in the case to commence on October 7, 2022.

On January 24, 2022, CMS filed a Cross-Complaint against Farrow Commercial, Inc.,
alleging causes of action for Breach of Contract, Ejectment, Trespass, Nuisance and
Injunctive Relief. On February 7, 2022, CMS filed a First Amended Cross-Complaint against
Farrow Commercial, Inc. and Farrow Ready Mix, Inc,, alleging the same five causes of
action.

In essence, CMS sought to oust Farrow from the property, and Farrow sought to
remain in possession, so as to continue its business and its efforts to satisfy the 56
conditions of the use permit.

Trial commenced on Friday, October 7,2022 in Department 17 as a bench trial
before the Honorable Brad DeMeo . The parties presented opening statements on October
11, and then the court heard evidence in the trial on October 12, 13, and 14. Due to an
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unforeseen situation resulting in the unavailability of CMS’ lead trial counsel, the trial then
was delayed for several months, resuming March 2, 2023.  The court heard testimony on
March 2,3,7,8,9, 10, and 14, with closing arguments presented on March 15, 2023.

Thereafter, on May 16, 2023, the Court issued its 28-page Tentative Statement of
Decision After Court Trial, finding in favor of Farrow on the breach of contract and
declaratory relief causes of action, and finding against CMS on all causes of action in CMS’
First Amended Cross-Complaint. CMS was to recover nothing on its First Amended Cross-
Complaint. The Court ruled that the Option Addendum was valid. Therefore, Farrow has
the right to continued possession of the property.

On May 31, 2023, CMS filed Request for Specific Findings and Amendments
Regarding the Court's May 16, 2023 Tentative Ruling After Court Trial. On June 12, 2023,
Farrow filed its Responses to CMS’ Request for Specific Findings and Amendments
Regarding the Court's May 16, 2023 Tentative Ruling After Court Trial; and Proposals
Regarding Same.

On June 15, 2023, the Court issued its 28-page Statement of Decision After Court
Trial, again ruling in favor of Farrow on the breach of contract and declaratory relief causes
of action, and finding against CMS on all causes of action in CMS’ First Amended Cross-
Complaint. Asit had in its Tentative Statement of Decision, the Court noted that Farrow’s
expert witness, Ben Neuman, “presented with impressive background and experience as an
inspector, plan reviewer and code enforcement officer for the County of Sonoma Permit
and Resource Management Department (now Permit Sonoma), and at one point in his
career was the head of that agency. His years of experience, education, and breadth of
knowledge is impressive and helpful to this Court.”

On June 28, 2023, CMS filed its Objections to Statement of Decision After Court Trial
and Request for Hearing. On July 12, 2023, Farrow filed its Responses to CMS’ Objections
to Statement of Decision After Court Trial and Request for Hearing. Farrow also submitted
a proposed Judgment to the Court, which CMS objected to.

Since mid-July, there have been no further filings in this case. We are waiting for
the Court to consider the latest-filed documents, and then hopefully, issue the Judgment in
Farrow’s favor.

As you can appreciate, since Farrow was informed on October 18, 2021 that its lease
was coming to an end on November 18, 2021 — a proposition it strongly disagreed with -
Farrow has been prevented by the actions of its landlord from taking the final steps toward
satisfying the conditions of the 2007 use permit. The CMS First Amended Cross-
Complaint sought to eject Farrow from the premises, and in addition, sought monetary
damages in the form of any profit that Farrow may have earned after November 18, 2021,
plus attorney’s fees and costs. Facing such severe and potentially-ruinous possibilities, our

3





September 8, 2023

clients essentially “held off” to see in which party’s favor the Court would rule upon after
hearing the evidence and argument at trial. After the Statements of Decision were issued
in its favor in May and June 2023, Farrow resumed its efforts to reconnect with Casey
McDonald at Adobe Associates and to resume the work directed toward the conditions.

We frankly were shocked to receive the August 18 letter from Permit Sonoma, and
interpret it as a behind-the-scenes maneuver designed to achieve what the landlord failed
to accomplish in litigation by way of its First Amended Cross-Complaint. The only reason
that Farrow did not submit its paperwork to the County in October 2021 is that it was
informed it was being evicted the following month. The last 23 months have been spent in
litigation, fighting to stay on the property and continue the business there. The Court has
indicated its intent to find in Farrow’s favor; however, the court proceedings are not yet
finished.

On behalf of Farrow, we respectfully request that Permit Sonoma rescind the letter
of August 18, and take any deadlines and hearing dates set forth in that letter off calendar.
As testified to by Mr. Farrow at trial, the intent of Farrow is to continue to work with the
County to clear the violations and satisfy the conditions of the use permit. CMS putup a
roadblock against those efforts for the last two years, thwarting Farrow’s efforts to do so.

[ would appreciate the opportunity to discuss this matter with you and County
Counsel. Icanbe reached at (707) 542-1393 x 101. Please let me know if I can provide

any documentation in the form of court pleadings or rulings, or other information for your
review.

Very truly yours,

Unwetht2e V. Zdycomakc

Michelle V. Zyromski

cc: Clients
Holly Rickett, Esq.
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From: John Farrow <john@farrowcommercial.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 5:40 PM

To: Alicia DelaCruz <Alicia.DelaCruz@sonoma-county.org>; Tennis Wick
<Tennis.Wick@sonoma-county.org>; Glenn Smith <gsmith@smithdollar.com>; Michelle
Zyromski <michelle@zklegal.com>; Troy Saldana <troy@farrowreadymix.com>; Sheri C

<scromley@farrowcommercial.com>

Cc: Cecily Condon <Cecily.Condon@sonoma-county.org>; Scott Orr <Scott.Orr@sonoma-

county.org>
Subject: Re: Notice of Intent to Revoke Permit UPEQ7-0112

Good afternoon Alicia

| am in receipt of your email. As you may be aware, we have been in litigation with the land
owner for over two years and recently received a judgment in our favor that was appealed for a
third time

We have most all of the 53 conditions addressed and ready for submittal to the County for
review.

We have worked faithfully with all parties including Adobe and Associates to get these conditions
met in the short time we have leased the property from the landlords. As you may also be aware,
these condition requirements existed for many years prior to Farrow taking over as tenant.

With that said, | believe our attorneys are working in good faith with your legal department to
figure out the final details regarding this matter. | have included them on this correspondence to
ensure full transparency.

Thank you for your time and consideration and we look forward to working with you and your
team to avoid the revocation.

On Wed, Aug 30, 2023, 4:53 PM Alicia DelLaCruz <Alicia.DelaCruz@sonoma-county.org> wrote:

Hello John Farrow,

On behalf of Cecily Condon (Project Review Manager), | am sending you the attached notice of
intent to revoke permit UPE07-0112. If you should have any questions, please feel free to
contact Cecily Condon (cc’d) in this email.
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Alicia De La Cruz

Senior Office Assistant
www.PermitSonoma.org

County of Sonoma

Code Enforcement Division

2550 Ventura Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95403
Office: (707)565-1900

Direct: (707)565-3715

Fax: (707) 565-1103
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Online tools remain the best way to access Permit Sonoma’s services like permitting,
records, scheduling inspections, and general questions. You can find out more about our
extensive online services at PermitSonoma.org.

The Permit Center is available to serve customers on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday,
Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, and Wednesday from 10:30 AM to 4:00 PM.

THIS EMAIL ORIGINATED OUTSIDE OF THE SONOMA COUNTY EMAIL SYSTEM.
Warning: If you don’t know this email sender or the email is unexpected,
do not click any web links, attachments, and never give out your user ID or password.

THIS EMAIL ORIGINATED OUTSIDE OF THE SONOMA COUNTY EMAIL
SYSTEM.

Warning: If you don’t know this email sender or the email is unexpected,

do not click any web links, attachments, and never give out your user ID or password.
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